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February 24, 2014 
 
Ms. Dana Hall, Deputy Director      Via Electronic Mail  
Low Impact Hydropower Institute  
131 Martha Road 
Harrington Park, New Jersey 07640 
 
Re : Letter of Support for Low Impact Hydro Institute Re-certification for Farmers Irrigation District, Hood River 
Oregon (FERC P-6801 and P-7532) 
 
Dear Ms. Hall,  
 
The Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife (ODFW) express our support for re-certification of the Farmers 
Irrigation District hydropower operation by the Low Impact Hydropower Institute. This support is contingent 
upon the implementation and continual operation of the hydropower system as described in the attached 
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) for Hydroelectric Operation Conditions with Exhibits A and B, dated August 
22, 2011.  
 
The Farmers Irrigation District is a leader in innovation for water conservation, and implementation of these low 
impact actions will help to protect and enhance fish populations in the Hood River. These implemented 
measures will help maintain minimum stream flows which assist in providing and protecting necessary fish and 
wildlife habitat in the Hood River Basin. These actions will provide added protection for Endangered Species Act 
protected fish species, and help reach recovery goals for the Hood River in The Lower Columbia River 
Conservation and Recovery Plan for Oregon Populations of Salmon and Steelhead.  
 
The operational conditions in the attached MOA are not regulatory requirements, but are voluntary actions that 
ODFW believes are suitable for support of low impact hydro certification. These actions alone will not ensure the 
sustainability of the healthy fish populations in the Hood River Basin, but will provide a foundation for further 
restoration activities to build upon.  
 
ODFW appreciates the voluntary support from the Farmers Irrigation District, and we believe their efforts are 
consistent with the requirements to qualify for Low Impact Hydropower Certification. If you have further 
questions, please feel free to contact me at Ted.G.Wise@state.or.us, or 541-633-1115.  
 
Sincerely,  

 
Ted Wise   
ODFW High Desert Area Hydropower Coordinator/Eastern Oregon Region 
 
ec:  Jer Camarata, FID  

Bonnie Lamb, ODEQ 

mailto:Ted.G.Wise@state.or.us
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6 March 2012 

Fred Ayer 

Low Impact Hydropower Institute 

34 Providence Street 

Portland, Maine 04103 

Dear Fred, 

Thank you for your forthright response. I’m pleased to read that conditions one and two have been 

adequately addressed. By way of additional information regarding Condition 3, as described in my 23 

December 2011 letter to you, Farmers Irrigation District (FID or District) operates two seasonal irrigation 

reservoirs (filled with spring runoff from Gate and Cabin creeks; emptied by late summer), but these 

irrigation reservoirs are not associated with the operation of the hydroelectric facilities. As you know, 

while Hood River County (HRC) operates a park at the upper irrigation reservoir and Oregon Department 

of Fish and Wildlife (ODFW) stocks the upper irrigation reservoir with trout each season, the irrigation 

reservoirs and associated park facilities are not parts of the FID hydroelectric project. While FID 

maintains a goal to develop and implement a mutually beneficial irrigation reservoir rehabilitation 

program to ensure continued safe operation and enhanced recreational opportunities in Hood River, the 

reservoir facilities are not now, and will not be in the future, a part of the FID hydroelectric system.  

In an effort to clear up any confusion regarding our irrigation reservoirs and our hydroelectric facilities, I 

have incorporated a simple map that illustrates the project elements and configuration, including 

associated water sources, hydroelectric plant locations, penstocks, and water rights. Based on project 

layout, while it might appear that the irrigation reservoirs – the Kingsley Reservoirs, as they are named – 

are an integral component of the District’s hydropower project, such is not the case. Although the 

District holds hydroelectric water right certificates for the use of waters from Gate Creek and Cabin 

Creek during the winter when the reservoirs are empty, the District holds no water rights for the use of 

any reservoir water for hydroelectric power production purposes. Furthermore, the irrigation reservoirs 

are empty throughout all of the peak hydroelectric power producing season. Said another way, it is 

illegal, and physically impossible, for the District to include its irrigation reservoirs as part of its 

hydroelectric project. Per the attached map, you can see that North Greenpoint Creek and Deadpoint 

Creek, to which we hold year-round hydro rights, feed the Lowline Canal, which is used to feed Forebay 

3 and Plant 3 Penstock for hydro production. 

That being said, while unrelated to its hydropower project, the District has for decades cooperated with 

ODFW and Hood River County, allowing open, unencumbered access to its irrigation reservoirs in direct 
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support of ODFW’s put-and-take trout fishery and HRC’s campground facilities, the campsites for which 

are concentrated along the eastern perimeter of the upper irrigation reservoir.  

So, in summary, the irrigation reservoirs are filled with supplemental irrigation water in late-spring of 

each irrigation season, and this stored supplemental irrigation water is used throughout each irrigation 

season to augment irrigation water delivery to high-value orchard land within the Farmers Irrigation 

District. By the end of each irrigation season, typically near the end of September of each year, the 

reservoirs are devoid of water. It is also of value to note that the hydroelectric generator in line with 

Gate and Cabin creeks is off-line throughout the regular irrigation months of the year as no surplus 

water is available for hydropower production even if the District had the legal right to use this irrigation 

water for power production. The Oregon Water Resources Department does not permit FID to use the 

irrigation reservoir water for hydropower production, the District’s FERC conduit exemption does not 

allow for use of irrigation reservoir water, and limited physical water supply precludes the use of 

irrigation reservoir water for hydropower production. Accordingly, it is not appropriate to include the 

irrigation reservoirs as a component part of the District’s hydropower project. 

I hope this letter addresses the confusion regarding the District’s irrigation reservoirs and their 

relationship to the FID hydropower project, and I look forward to hearing back from you after you have 

had time to review all our latest information. Thank you, Fred, and thanks to Gabriela as well. 

Best,  

Jer Camarata 

 
District Manager 
Farmers Irrigation District 
 




